
 

 
Page 1 of 7 

 

Intergovernmental Cooperation Authority for Harrisburg 

Minutes of the Governing Board 

Regular Meeting 

January 22, 2025 

Temple University Harrisburg, Strawberry Square, Harrisburg PA 

hbgica.org 

Members in Attendance Mr. Doug Hill, Chair 
Ms. Audry Carter 
Ms. Kathy Speaker MacNett 
Ms. Elaine Barber 

A Quorum Was Recognized 

Ex-Officio Members in Attendance Mr. Bryan McCutcheon, 
City of Harrisburg 
Mr. Michael Hill,  
Department of the Budget 

 

In Attendance Mr. Michael Cassidy, 
General Counsel 
Mr. Jeffrey Stonehill, 
Authority Manager 

 

Meeting Begins   3:02 p.m. 

Welcome by Doug Hill, Chair Mr. Hill opened the meeting.  

Approval of the Minutes 

• December 18, 2024 

On a motion by Ms. Carter, Second by 
Ms. MacNett, the minutes were 
approved. 

The minutes were 
approved by a vote of 4-0. 

Report by the Chair Mr. Hill reviewed that the 2025 City 
budget was completed. He congratulated 
the finance staff for their 
accomplishments. He noted the changes 
made by City Council and the subsequent 
line-item vetoes by the Mayor.  
 
Mr. Hill noted the upcoming completion 
of the 2022 audit.  
 
Finally, Mr. Hill introduced Mr. Bob 
Kennick, the new Director of Finance, for 
the City of Harrisburg. 

 

Report on City of Harrisburg 
Financial Activities 

Mr. Hill introduced Mr. McCutcheon, 
Accounting Manager. There were two 
handouts to review. 
 
He reviewed the following information: 

• The City ended the 2024 fiscal 
year with approximately $1.2 
million in expenses over revenue. 

 
 



 

 
Page 2 of 7 

 

• The General Fund ended with a 
cash fund balance of 
approximately $18.5 million. 

• Mr. McCutcheon explained that 
he calculates the fund balance on 
a cash basis whereas the 
Controller calculations includes 
encumbrances. 

• The City is carrying some 
significant encumbrances related 
to the renovation of the FNB 
Stadium on City Island. 

• Mr. McCutcheon said the cash 
balance is higher than 
anticipated. This includes a stop 
loss insurance reimbursement for 
extraordinary health insurance 
costs. 
 

Mr. Stonehill asked about the 
reimbursement schedule of the RCAP 
grant related to the FNB Stadium project. 
 
Mr. Stonehill asked about the Stop Loss 
Insurance policy. 
 

• A Neighborhood Services Fund 
summary through December 31st 

with a $5.2 million balance cash 
fund balance. This is slightly 
below original estimates. 

• Mr. McCutcheon said there was 
an extra disposal invoice in 2024 
compared to other years. 
 

• Mr. McCutcheon discussed the 
changes in revenue projections 
throughout 2024. 

• He said that revenue was in 
excess of estimates and that 
while expenses were also higher, 
the General Fund performed 
better than originally forecasted. 
 

• Mr. McCutcheon noted the 
various uses of the ARPA grant 
funding using a summary exhibit.  



 

 
Page 3 of 7 

 

• Mr. McCutcheon noted how the 
money transfers to the General 
Fund for use. 

• He reviewed the project uses. 
 

Ms. Carter asked if the ARPA funding 
transfers and their impact on Fund 
Balance, as well as reporting 
requirements for the US Treasury 
Department. 
 
Mr. Neil Grover, City Solicitor, explained 
the ARPA funding reporting 
requirements. 
 
Mr. Kennick commented on federal 
funding requirements. 
 

• Mr. McCutcheon noted that 

there was now a final draft of the 

proposed 2022 City Audit, which 

was originally expected 

sometime in 2024. 

• There will be an Audit Committee 

meeting. 

• Boyer & Ritter was ready to begin 

working on the 2023 City Audit. 

• Maher Dussel has already begun 

on their sections of the 2023 City 

Audit. 

Ms. Carter asked that the ICA Board be 
invited to the upcoming Audit Committee 
meeting. 

Discussion with the City Solicitor Mr. Hill introduced Mr. Neil Grover, City 
Solicitor. There were some questions 
provided to the Solicitor in advance. 
 
Mr. Grover explained the role of the Law 
Bureau. 
 
He noted the post-COVID impact of office 
tower uses and assessment and taxes. 
The changing cultural change of remote 
work. It may require constitutional 
changes in Pennsylvania. There are long 
term projections for drops in many 
revenue categories as a result. 

 



 

 
Page 4 of 7 

 

Mr. Grover gave examples of office 
towers being vacant and having little 
value. 
 
Mr. Hill asked about Act 47 status. Mr. 
Grover reviewed the status of the 
Harrisburg Incinerator Litigation, which is 
the impediment to ending Act 47 status. 
 
Mr. Grover mentioned another case, a 
Sanitation rate challenge case. 
 
Mr. Hill asked about the City recovery 
and relationship to the Broad Street 
Market. Mr. Stonehill clarified asking 
about the obligations of the City. Mr. 
Grover explained the complex situation 
and real expenditures. 
 
Mr. Hill asked about the obligation of the 
City relative to the FNB Stadium project. 
Mr. Grover explained that the lease 
places the responsibility on the City to 
provide a stadium to the team’s 
standards. There is a $12 million project 
underway financed by an RCAP grant. Mr. 
Stonehill inquired about future demands 
with inability to borrow money. 
 
Mr. Hill asked about collections in the 
Neighborhood Services Fund. Mr. Grover 
does not believe the proposal to 
switching to a collection through 
property taxes may not be legally 
permissible. He added that there is no 
statue of limitations on filing for liens for 
unpaid trash bills. The City has never sent 
liens out to force sale of homes. The lien 
system is working.  Mr. Grover explains 
how and when liens are paid, or not paid. 
 
Ms. MacNett asked if any unpaid trash 
bills are for non-residents. Mr. Grover 
said there is an issue with a bad debt in 
Steelton Borough.  
 
Ms. MacNett asked about the Other Post-
Employment Benefits (OPEB) Trust Board. 
Mr. Grover said it was a great idea but 



 

 
Page 5 of 7 

 

not feasible. There will need to be 
petition to the court to change the plan 
in its current design. Otherwise, it will not 
happen. Ms. MacNett asked if there were 
discussions of changing from a pay-as-
you-go policy. Mr. Stonehill clarify. Mr. 
McCutcheon clarified the current use of 
pay-as-you-go obligations to post-
retirement medical claims. 
 
Mr. Grover noted union contacts have 
changed to eventually phase out the 
OPEB liability. 
 
Mr. McCutcheon clarified that the 
actuarial calculation of the current OPEB 
liability for the City of Harrisburg is 
approximately $125-$170 million. There 
is an update every other year. 
 
Ms. MacNett asked about when it will 
end. Mr. Grover said when the last 
retiree or the last retiree spouse dies. 
 
Mr. Stonehill clarified that the court will 
need to be involved in a request to exit 
Act 47, Act 124, and the Strong Plan to 
eliminate the requirement of the OPEB 
Trust. 
 
Ms. Carter made a statement about other 
changes that may be needed. Mr. Grover 
said he will present his opinion of Act 124 
to the court. 
 
Mr. Hill thanked him for his attendance. 
 
Mr. Grover mentioned an issue with a 
deadbeat landlord who owns an 
apartment tower in the City. 

Authority Manager’s Report Mr. Stonehill provided the financial 
report for January 2025.  
 
Mr. Stonehill said that taxes will be filed 
in January. 

 

Other Business None  

Public Comments Eric Epstein, from Rock the Capitol, 
brought up a series of points and asked a 
series of questions. 

 



Page 6 of 7 

Mr. Hill commented on the establishment 
of a Local Economic Revitalization Tax 
Assistance (LERTA) work group. 

Mr. Stonehill introduced Sam Sulkosky, 
the newly appointed Business 
Administrator, for the City of Harrisburg. 

There are now meetings with the Mayor 
during in-between months. Ms. Carter 
added to this point. 

Adjourn meeting at 4:38 p.m. Motion by Ms. Barber. 
A second was not required. 

Approved 4-0. 

Respectfully submitted: 

--------------------------------- 

Jeffrey M. Stonehill, Authority Manager 



 

 
Page 7 of 7 

 

Appendix Documents 



Summary of Bills Paid – Intergovernmental Cooperation Authority for Harrisburg 

Report – December 18, 2024 to January 22, 2025 

 

Starting balance (October 1):   $128,011.71 

12/31/24 Monthly Interest on Checking Account +$2.28  

1/1/25 Digital Ocean $12.72 

1/1/25 Digital Ocean $6.87 

1/1/25 Pursuit Co-Working Harrisburg $98.15 

1/2/25 Factory 44 $300.00 

1/22/25 MESH PA 2 (Jan, Feb, and Mar 2025) $13,650.00 

  

Estimated Balance (January 22, 2025)   $113,946.31 

 

 

 

 












